


TOWN OF STONY POINT
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
Minutes of June 17, 2021



PRESENT:						ALSO PRESENT:
Mr. Keegan						Dave MacCartney, Attorney
Mr. Anginoli 						John Hager, Building Inspector
Mr. Lynch 						
Mr. Strieter  
Mr. Gazzola  
Ms. Davis (absent)
 
Chairman Wright 

Chairman Wright:  Good evening.  Welcome to the Stony Point Zoning Board of Appeals.  I call this meeting of June 17, 2021, to order.  Please rise for the Pledge of Allegiance.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited, and roll call taken. 

Chairman Wright:  The first item we have on the agenda is the decision for the request of Vestco, LLC.

Request of Vestco, LLC – App. #21-05 

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article V, Section 15A-B-7 – Less than required side yard; required 10 feet, provided 4 feet (8 foot variance needed) at 11 Holt Drive, Stony Point, New York, for an amended site plan.  

Section:  20.04          Block:  11          Lot:  7            Zone:  LI-2

***MOTION:  Mr. Lynch offered the following resolution; seconded by Mr. Keegan.

In the Matter of Application #21-05 of Vestco, LLC for a variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article V, Section 15A-B-7 – Less than required side yard; required 10 feet, provided 4 feet (8 foot variance needed) at 11 Holt Drive, Stony Point, New York, for an amended site plan, designated on the Tax Map as Section 20.04, Block 11, Lot 7 in the LI-2 Zoning District.

WHEREAS, the applicant was represented by David Zigler, P.L.S., and the following documents were placed into the record and duly considered:

Application and all attached documents; 2/26/21 Referral letter from Town Planning Board; Amended Site Plan dated February 3, 2021; Rockland County Planning Department letter dated April 13, 2021; April 19, 2021, Letter from David Zigler, P.L.S.


Additionally, members of the Zoning Board of Appeals personally visited the applicant’s property and viewed it and the neighboring properties on or about April 11, 2021.

	WHEREAS, this is a Type II Action pursuant to the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act; and

	WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on April 15 and May 20, 2021, and the testimony of the following persons was duly considered: David Zigler, P.L.S.; Applicant; and 


	WHEREAS, all the evidence and testimony was carefully considered, and the Zoning Board of Appeals has made the following findings of fact and conclusions:

	The applicant is the owner of the subject mixed use commercial parcel located on Holt Drive.  The applicant previously obtained site plan approval and improved the property with a mini warehouse, a brick and metal building; and various office units. A portion of the property was previously used by the applicant’s principal as a piano warehouse and a physician utilized two of the units.  That physician now requests to occupy a third unit (presently occupied by the applicant’s principal for an office connected to the piano warehouse) for an MRI facility.  The applicant’s principal wishes to accommodate that request and will move his office back to the piano warehouse.  

The site presently consists of two different uses; the back of the site is a warehouse, and the front is commercial, with a doctor, therapist, and the proposed MRI facility.  Because the proposed MRI facility is expected to increase the activity on the property the applicant wishes to add parking spaces.  Right now, there are 13 spaces, including two handicapped, abutting, and perpendicular to the building, so when a car enters from Holt Drive, they would turn to the right and pull straight into one of the 13 spots next to the building.  The applicant now proposes to add 6 new parking spaces all aligned front to back parallel to the eastern property line.  Each of those 6 proposed parking spaces would be 4 feet from that eastern property line.  The proposed location and configuration are shown in the “Amended Site Plan” dated last revised February 3, 2021.  The intention is for the employees that work there to use those 6 spots, so the patients can use the existing spots next to the building to easily, safely, and quickly gain access to the sidewalk and then the facility.  The additional parking is not required by Code, but because this is a medical facility, the applicant wishes to facilitate a short and safe walk for patients entering the facility.

The applicant proceeded to the Town Planning Board for approval of an Amended Site Plan.  The Planning Board then referred the applicant to this Board because the proposed parking 4 feet from the property line would violate the required side yard setback requirement.  10 feet are required by Code, so a variance of 6 feet to allow these parking spaces in this location is requested. 

	No objections were received to the application and relief requested.

The Rockland County Planning Department issued a review letter dated April 13, 2021, containing 6 enumerated comments. Comment 1 required a referral to the Town of Haverstraw and the Village of West Haverstraw. Those referrals were completed, and no responses were received despite the passage of over 30 days.  Comment 2 concerning the fire lane has been satisfied because the Town Fire Inspector has reviewed and approved the relocation of that fire lane to the south as shown on the plans. Comment 3 requested a dedicated turnaround area with pavement markings or gated fence to separate the office use traffic from the active loading zone on the rear warehouse building. Everybody that enters the site must turn around either at the first bay or last bay at the already-provided dedicated turnaround area. Therefore, this comment is either satisfied or overridden, as the Board believes the existing conditions are satisfactory.  Comment 4 requests an amendment of the bulk table, but the bulk table provided was established at the approval of the original Site Plan LI 2 Zone Use Group B, so the Board hereby overrides this comment.  Comments 5 and 6 re-state legal requirements with which this Board is complying.

WHEREAS, this Board has examined the written documentation and reviewed the testimony with respect to the applicant’s request for a variance, and, pursuant to the requirements of section 267-b.3 of the Town Law, hereby finds that on the conditions stated herein, the benefit to the applicant if the variance is granted outweighs any detriment to the health, safety and welfare of the neighborhood or community by such a grant, and has made the following findings and conclusions in that regard:

(1) There is no evidence presented that the proposed variance would produce any undesirable change in the character of the neighborhood or a detriment to any nearby properties.   

(2) There is no evidence presented to this Board that the benefits sought could be achieved through any other feasible means.  


(3)  The variance sought is substantial in terms of percentage and feet, but based on all the facts unique to this property, this does not preclude a grant of the relief sought. 
 
(4) There is no evidence before this Board of any adverse effect or impact on the physical or environmental conditions in the neighborhood or district.  
  
(5) The alleged difficulty was self-created.

 	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the application for variance(s) is hereby approved on the following conditions:

CONDITIONS:

1. The applicant shall comply substantially with the plans submitted, subject to further  Planning Board review.
2. The applicant shall comply with all other applicable laws, rules, codes, and regulations.

The matter is remanded to the Planning Board and Building Department for further consideration in compliance with the terms and conditions hereof.

Upon roll call, the vote was as follows:  Mr. Keegan, yes; Mr. Anginoli, yes; Mr. Lynch, yes; Mr. Strieter, yes; Mr. Gazzola, yes; Ms. Davis, absent; and Chairman Wright, yes.

Chairman Wright:  Item #2 is the request of Pierre and Marybeth Chaubard.

Request of Pierre and Marybeth Chaubard  – App. #21-04 

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article XIV, Section 94D(e) – The maximum building height shall be 25 feet, for 6 Roosevelt Place, Stony Point, New York, for residential alterations.  

Section:  15.19          Block:  3          Lot:  14          Zone:  R-1 

***MOTION:  Mr. Strieter offered the following resolution; seconded by Mr.  Anginoli.

In the Matter of Application #21-05 of Pierre and Marybeth Chaubard for a variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article XIV, Section 94D(e) – The maximum building height shall be 25 feet, provided 28.1 feet, for residential alterations on premises located at 6 Roosevelt Place, Stony Point, New York, designated on the Tax Map as Section 215.19, Block 3, Lot 14 in the R-1 Zoning District.
WHEREAS, the applicant was represented by Benjamin Leopold and the following documents were placed into the record and duly considered:
Application and all attached documents; Architectural Plans; Rockland County Planning Department letter dated March 18, 2021; Rockland County Highway Department letter dated March 2, 2021; undated letter from Raymond Ahmadi, emailed to the Town on March 18, 2021; Bulk Table; Letter dated “June [sic – should be May] 20, 2021” from Town Building Inspector.
Additionally, members of the Zoning Board of Appeals personally visited the applicant’s property and viewed it and the neighboring properties on or about February 21, 2021.
	WHEREAS, this is a Type II Action pursuant to the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act; and
	WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on April 15 and May 20, 2021, and the testimony of the following persons was duly considered: Benjamin Leopold; Applicant; John Hager; and 
WHEREAS, all the evidence and testimony was carefully considered, and the Zoning Board of Appeals has made the following findings of fact and conclusions:
	The applicants are the owners of the subject parcel, which is improved with a single story residential structure that has fallen into disrepair.  The applicant proposes to renovate the entire existing structure and add a level.  The property is on a hillside, so from the front the building it will appear to be two stories, whereas from the rear, one will see the two stories plus the walk-out basement.  When computed as required under the Code, the height comes out to 28.1 feet, but 25 feet is the maximum permitted upon application of Sec. 94D of the Code. 
All the surrounding houses are more than a single story.  The proposed renovations and addition does not impact the sight lines of any neighbors to the river or of the east facing view.  The front of the building complies with the height requirements, but it is only because of the slope in the back that the computation for height exceeds the Code requirements.
	The owner of a neighboring property (Mr. Ahmadi) wrote an undated letter objecting to the variance on several grounds.  The applicant and the Building Inspector both responded to each of the stated concerns in a manner satisfactory to this Board.  The stated concerns (like one of the comments from the County Department of Planning – see below) are not consistent with the Building Inspector’s interpretation of the Town Code.  Since this is a pre-existing nonconforming property and is less than 100 feet in width, the Building Inspector has determined that a different Code section (Section 215-94D) applies than the one(s) relied upon by the objectant and the County.  The Building Inspector explained his interpretation was consistent with the Code and that no other or different variances were applied for or currently required.  His determination was further set forth in a letter he submitted to the Board at the May 20, 2021, public hearing.  In any event, the Board only has present jurisdiction to address the specific variance applied for, which is a 3.1 foot height variance.  Additionally, any engineering or structural issues must be dealt with to the satisfaction of the Town Building Inspector prior to the issuance of any building permit or certificate of occupancy and are not within this Board’s present jurisdiction.  
	The Rockland County Planning Department issued a review letter dated March 8, 2021, containing 6 enumerated comments.  Each is either satisfied or hereby overridden.
Comments 1and 2 require a review by the County Health and Highway Departments and any required permits obtained.  County Highway reviewed the matter and had no objections, and the remainder of these comments are satisfied via the conditions below. 
Comment 3 relates to the concern about other variances possibly being necessary.   It is hereby overridden because it is based on a reading of the Code inconsistent with the Town Building Inspector’s interpretation, per his testimony and per his letter submitted to the Board on May 20, 2021.  If any new variances are required or sought, they will be set forth in a new application which will be sent to the County for review. 
Comments 4 and 5 re-state legal requirements with which this Board is complying.
No other objections were received to the application and relief requested.
WHEREAS, this Board has examined the written documentation and reviewed the testimony with respect to the applicant’s request for a variance, and, pursuant to the requirements of section 267-b.3 of the Town Law, hereby finds that on the conditions stated herein, the benefit to the applicant if the variance is granted outweighs any detriment to the health, safety and welfare of the neighborhood or community by such a grant, and has made the following findings and conclusions in that regard:
(1) There is no evidence presented that the proposed variance would produce any undesirable change in the character of the neighborhood or a detriment to any nearby properties.   
(2) There is no evidence presented to this Board that the benefits sought could be achieved through any other feasible means.  
(3)  The variance sought is not substantial. 
(4) There is no evidence before this Board of any adverse effect or impact on the physical or environmental conditions in the neighborhood or district.  
(5) The alleged difficulty was self-created.
 	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the application for variance(s) is hereby approved on the following conditions:
CONDITIONS:
1. A review must be completed by the Rockland County Department of Health to ensure compliance with Article XIX of the County Sanitary Code, and any required permits from the County Highway Department, must be obtained prior to the issuance of any building permit or certificate of occupancy.
2. The applicant shall comply substantially with the plans submitted, and representations made, to this Board.
3. The applicant shall comply with all other applicable laws, rules, codes, and regulations.

The matter is remanded to the Building Department for further consideration in compliance with the terms and conditions hereof.
Upon roll call, the vote was as follows:  Mr. Keegan, yes; Mr. Anginoli, yes; Mr. Lynch, yes; Mr. Strieter, yes; Mr. Gazzola, yes; Ms. Davis, absent; and Chairman Wright, yes.
Chairman Wright:  Onto the 3rd item is the request of Stony Point Ambulance.
Request of Stony Point Ambulance – App. #21-01 

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article V, Section 12-F – No professional office space permitted in R1 Zone at 6 Lee Avenue, Stony Point, New York, for office space.

Section:  15.19          Block:  4          Lot:  62          Zone:  R1
***MOTION:  Mr. Keegan offered the following resolution; seconded by Mr. Strieter.

	In the Matter of Application #21-01 of Stony Point Ambulance Corps to grant a use variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article V, Section 12-F – No professional office space permitted in the R1 Zone, to permit professional office space on premises located at 6 Lee Avenue, Stony Point, New York, designated on the Tax Map as Section 15.19, Block 4, Lot 62 and located in the R1 Zoning District.

	WHEREAS, the applicant was represented by Scott Ugell, Esq. and the following documents were placed into the record and duly considered:

Application with all attachments; March 8, 2021, letter from State Department of Transportation; March 17, 2021, letter from County Department of Planning; March 8, 2021, letter from Rockland County Highway Department; April 30, 2021, Affidavit of James Damiani; all other documents and proof submitted. 


Additionally, members of the Zoning Board of Appeals personally visited the applicant’s property and viewed it and the neighboring properties on or about February 21, 2021.

	WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on March 18, April 15 and May 20, 2021, and the testimony of the following persons was duly considered: Scott Ugell, Esq,; Applicant; James Damiani; and 


	WHEREAS, all the evidence and testimony was carefully considered, and the Zoning Board of Appeals has made the following findings of fact:

	Before the Board is an applicant facing a particularly unique predicament. The Stony Point Ambulance Corps, a Town taxpayer-funded organization, provides 24 hour community ambulance services to the greater Stony Point community, including its residents and visitors.  Needless to say, this is a critical function provided for the benefit of the health, safety and welfare of all Town residents and visitors.  The Ambulance Corps owns the subject building, which was its original home for the past half century or more.   Recently, to properly serve the greater Stony Point community, which has grown considerably over those years, the Ambulance Corps constructed a new, modern, updated and expanded facility in another location in the Town.  Consequently, the Ambulance Corps vacated the building at the subject premises. 


The Ambulance Corps presently has a significant financial burden, which includes the costs of carrying the old, now-vacant building while also servicing a substantial loan related to the construction of the new building, among other things. The loan is secured by both buildings.  The intent was to sell the old building to assist in paying down the debt and thereby essentially help the new building which is critical for the Corps to continue with its mission.   Without a sale of the old building, the Corps is in danger of insolvency, which would severely impact the lives and welfare of those the Corps serves.

The Corps sought buyers for the old building without any success until now.  The problem is that the building is located in a residential neighborhood, in the R-1 zoning district where only residential uses are permitted as of right. However, the building is quite obviously not in any way suited for residential use.  It was constructed, maintained, and used historically to serve the unique function of an ambulance corps.  

	The Ambulance Corps has recently finally located a buyer for the property that seeks to use the building for office space, but that is a prohibited use in the R-1 Zone.   The prospective purchaser is a single use operator which requires modest office space for a few employees, where that operator essentially acts as a broker of office cleaning services.  As represented, the intensity of the proposed use is less than what was there when the Corps was fully operational in that location and also less than might even be expected with a residential use by a typical family. 

The sale is contingent and cannot be completed unless the prospective buyer can use the space for that purpose.  Consequently, the Ambulance Corps is before this Board seeking a use variance to permit the subject building to be used for office space.   If the use variance is granted, the applicant will need to then proceed to the Town Planning Board for site plan approval, where all the usual and customary planning and engineering reviews would be completed, including for things such as the parking, occupancy, etc. 

	In order to address the New York State Town Law requirements applicable to the request for a use variance, the applicant presented, among other things, expert proof in the form of an affidavit and sworn testimony from a local and respected NYS licensed Real Estate Associate Broker, James Damiani.

The Rockland County Department of Planning (“County Planning”) issued a review letter dated March 17, 2021.  Therein, County Planning made six enumerated comments.  To the extent any of County’s comments are deemed to not be satisfied herein, they are hereby overridden for the reasons set forth herein.

	The first comment reiterated the need for the applicant to prove an unnecessary hardship and satisfy each of the four factors required by NYS Town Law for the grant of use variances. As set forth herein, this condition is satisfied or overridden because the Board has found that the applicant has satisfied each of the applicable criteria, on the terms and conditions set forth below.

County Planning’s second comment was to the effect that the applicant has not submitted a site plan or information concerning various planning elements associated with the proposed office use.  This comment is either satisfied or overridden, since the applicant must still proceed back to the Planning Board for site plan review and approval, and a grant of this variance will be made expressly subject to and conditioned upon such review and approval, which must also be consistent with the representations made before this Board.

The third and fourth comments are that a review is to be conducted by Rockland County Highway Department and NYS State Department of Transportation and any required permits obtained. County Highway and NYS State DOT provided no objections and if there are any permits required, obtaining them is made a condition hereof. 

The fifth and sixth comments are just restatements of legal requirements with which this Board will comply. 

No objections from the public were submitted to the Board to the variance sought.


WHEREAS, this Board has examined the written documentation and reviewed the testimony with respect to the applicant’s request for a use variance, and, pursuant to the requirements of section 267-b.2 of the Town Law, hereby finds that the applicant has established by clear and convincing proof that the applicable zoning regulations have caused an unnecessary hardship to the applicant, and the Board has made the following findings and conclusions in that regard:

(1) The applicant presented competent financial proof which demonstrated that for each and every permitted use under the zoning regulations for this district the applicant cannot realize a reasonable return, and that the lack of return is substantial.

In his sworn testimony and affidavit, Mr. Damiani set forth without contradiction in the record and with supporting proof, that the applicant cannot realize a reasonable return on the subject property.  He showed the Board with competent financial proof that the lack of return is substantial (there is zero return). Specifically, he confirmed that this is by nature inherently a commercial building, not suited in any way for residential use.  If the R-1 zoning regulations were strictly enforced, there is literally no use to which this building can be put.  There is no return under any permitted use.  The cost of adapting it to a residential use is cost-prohibitive in that it would cost hundreds of thousands of dollars to do so, and even then it would be a very awkward and undesirable kind of residential use with insufficient residual value to realize any return.  Mr. Damiani detailed the many problems and barriers associated with such a conversion, even beyond the financial aspect.  He asserted without contradiction that the building is worth about $300,000.00, and spending several hundred thousand dollars above that to make it into what would be at best an undesirable residential building would bring no return at all.  He also testified that even tearing the building down and rebuilding would bring a negative return, given that demolition would cost approximately $50,000 only to then leave an empty lot worth only $125,000-$150,000.  Building a house on that small empty lot would cost in excess of $300,000, but the prevailing market rate for resale is well below that combined cost.  There is zero return in that option.     

(2) The applicant demonstrated that the alleged hardship relating to the property in question is unique and does not apply to a substantial portion of the district or neighborhood.  There are no other similarly situated properties. This is a unique situation in every sense.

(3) The applicant established that the requested use variance would not alter the essential character of the neighborhood, since it has been situated in this location here for over a half century, and the office use is expected to be less intense than the former ambulance use and likely even less than a typical family home.

(4) The applicant established that the alleged hardship was not self-created, given the circumstances as outlined above.  The building was constructed for the unique and critical requirements of a community volunteer ambulance corps, and was built in this residential neighborhood over 50 years ago. The needs of the community were such that the Corps outgrew the old building, and consequently, to serve the public as required, the Corps now finds itself in the current untenable position not of its own making. 

	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the application for a use variance as set forth herein to allow a use of the property for professional office space is hereby granted on the following conditions:

1. The grant of the variance sought is expressly subject to and conditioned upon a full review and approval by the Town Planning Board, which must be consistent with the representation made by the applicant to this Board, and the Planning Board shall address all appropriate planning issues including those set forth in Comment 2 to the County Planning’s March 17, 2021, letter. 
2. The application is granted in reliance and conditioned upon substantial compliance with the plans and representations before this Board and is subject to the applicant’s compliance with all other applicable laws, rules, and regulations.
3. Any required permits from State DOT or County Highway must be obtained.

The applicant is hereby referred back to the Building Department and Planning Board for any and all necessary further action or determinations consistent with this Resolution.

Upon roll call, the vote was as follows:  Mr. Keegan, yes; Mr. Anginoli, yes; Mr. Lynch, yes; Mr. Strieter, yes, Mr. Gazzola, yes; Ms. Davis, absent; and Chairman Wright.

Chairman Wright:  We have a couple of new applications and here what we are looking to do is just get the applicants or the representatives just to kind of give us a background of what is going on.  It’s not part of the Public Hearing.  We are just looking to kind of get an understanding to make sure that the application is complete and matches pretty much what the application actually says.  

So with that - the first application is the request of Paula Maunsell.

Request of Paula Maunsell - App. #21-08 

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Attachment 11, Column ‘G’ #1 – Change of Use to Residential Mixed Use in BU District – Minimum 50 foot wide buffer; providing 15’ wide buffer.  Requires 35 feet at 88 North Liberty Drive, Stony Point, New York.

Section:  15.04          Block:  3          Lot:  42.1          Zone:  BU

Chairman Wright:  Can you just identify yourself and your address?

	Ramya Ramanathan – representing the applicant Paula Maunsell
	Atzl, Nasher & Zigler
	234 North Main Street
	New City, New York

Chairman Wright:  Can you give us a quick kind of overview of what you are looking to accomplish in and what you are seeking.

Ms. Ramanathan:  Yes, as you just mentioned right now the site currently has a non-conforming buffer requirement and the applicant is proposing to double up on the mixed use property which would include offices on the first floor and residential uses on the second floor and the application in front of you is an area variance.  The size is 17,000 square feet; roughly, and its only renovation.  There is no expansion of the structures on site.  

The variance we seek is because it pre-dates the Stony Point Zoning Code and its been 15 feet the way it is before the Board came into effect.  It’s basically a non-conforming measurement that’s been there before the Code existed.  

We are trying to attempt to formalize this by being here.  We’ve been in front of the Planning Board before and they referred us to the Z.B.A. and the Building Inspector was also present at those meetings, and we were recommended to present our case to the Board today.  

Chairman Wright:  Any questions from the Board?

Mr. Lynch:  Do we know how long the property has been vacant?

Ms. Ramanathan:  It’s been vacant for many years.  I think the Building Inspector would know about that, but it’s been several years that it’s been vacant.  

Mr. Hager:  It’s been a number of years; but I don’t know the number.

Mr. Lynch:  Mr. Hager, does that have any determination on it falling from a non-conforming lot to a conforming lot.

Mr. Hager:  In the files it appears that the building was used at some point as a multi-residence or some kind of boarding house.  So it wouldn’t have required that buffer at that time since the buffer is required in a commercial and residential use.  Now that they are proposing the commercial use, that’s bringing the building closer to a conforming use, but it requires some buffering.  


Chairman Wright:  Any other questions from the Board?  I just want to make sure the application is complete.

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Does anybody have anything else to add?

Mr. MacCartney:  The only comment that I have is that it is my understanding is that they have not paid the escrow because it is a commercial application and escrow would be required.  Other than that, everything looks fine to me.

Ms. Ramanathan:  We have been in touch with Kathy on that.  

Chairman Wright:  So we normally do a site visit at the end of the month, that would be June 27, 2021.  So between 8 and 10:00 if someone could just be there.  If nobody is there by 10:00, then you can just pack up.  But, normally we try to get there between 8 and 10.  

Ms. Ramanathan:  Definitely.  Do you need somebody to do…you need the applicant present on this site or just…?

Chairman Wright:  No, just kind of lay-out and show us what the proposal looks like.  

Ms. Ramanathan:  Sounds good.  

Chairman Wright:  Any other questions?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Okay, I will take a motion to put this on the agenda for our next meeting.

***MOTION:  Mr. Anginoli made a motion to place Application #21-08 on the July 15, 2021, agenda for a Public Hearing; seconded by Mr. Strieter.  All in favor, the motion was caried.

Chairman Wright:  Next on the agenda is a new application for the request of Phillip Garabo and Jacqueline O’Kane.

Request of Phillip Garabo and Jacqueline O’Kane - App. #21-09 

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article V, Section 215-15 – Bulk Table Each of the uses within each group is regulated by the bulk requirements for the indicated use group.  Zone R1, Use group h.1, column 4, requires 35’ minimum.  Rear yard setback.  Proposed addition allows for 31.5 feet rear yard.

Variance required – 3.5 ‘ rear yard set-back for a two story addition at 12 Griffin Place, Stony Point, New York.  

Section:  15.20          Block:  1          Lot:  57          Zone:  R1

Chairman Wright:  Are you the applicants?

Applicants:  Yes, we are.

Chairman Wright:  If you could just identify yourselves with your name and addresses please.

	Jacqueline O’Kane
	12 Griffin Place
	Stony Point, New York

and
	Phillip Garabo
	12 Griffin Place
	Stony Point, New York


Chairman Wright:  If you could just briefly describe what you are looking to do with the property?

Mr. Garabo:  We are going to be doing an addition off the back and the corner of the deck encroaches, I guess, the setback.

Ms. O’Kane:  It doesn’t run like parallel to the house.  It is just the left corner.  It is about 3 feet of the corner of the deck that we are infringe upon.  All the other space is not.

Chairman Wright:  Any questions from the Board?  

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  This is an area variance.  

Mr. MacCartney:  The one question I had…I don’t see in the packet the Building Inspector’s denial letter.  We should make sure the Board has that - it is part of the packet.  It is possible I missed it.

Ms. Kivlehan:  I will make sure I forward it onto you.  

Mr. MacCartney:  Is there a survey?

Ms. O’Kane:  Yes, it is on the last page.  

Chairman Wright:  So the same thing.  We will be there between 8 and 10 on June 27, 2021.  If you could, just mark out where the area is and then the meeting will be July 15, 2021.  

Ms. O’Kane:  I don’t know if this matters, I took it upon myself to write a letter…I know we have to send it out and all of our neighbors…I have it right here.  I don’t know if you would want them, but…

Chairman Wright:  It will be part of the packet.  Send a copy to Kathy to make it part of the packet.

Ms. O’Kane:  Thank you so much.  

Chairman Wright:  Alright, the next item on the agenda is the request of Alexis Pinos.

Request of Alexis Pinos – App. #21-10

A variance request for a use variance for non-residential use permitted in RR Zone for contractor’s storage unit located at 21 Blanchard Road, Stony Point, NY.
[bookmark: _Hlk76471908]
Section:  19.01          Block:  1          Lot:  18.3          Zone:  RR

Chairman Wright:  From what I understand he is not here, and he is requesting a postponement.  

Chairman Wright:  This brings us to a Public Hearing for the request of Peter Walsh.

Request of Peter Walsh - App. #21-07 

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article XIV, Paragraph 94 D – Insufficient side yard set-back; required side yard:  15’ minimum, proposed side yard 6.7’, required combined side yard setbacks: 25’, proposed combined side yard set-backs:  21.1’, exist.  Front yard established at 25.5’.  Variances required 8.3’ side yard setback and 3.9’ combined side yard setback for residential addition at 8 Walter Drive, Stony Point, New York.

Section:  15.03          Block:  3          Lot:  57          Zone:  R-1

Chairman Wright:  I will take a motion to open the Public Hearing.

***MOTION:  Mr. Lynch made a motion to open the Public Hearing; seconded by Mr. Anginoli.  All in favor; the motion was carried.


Chairman Wright:  Could you just identify yourself and then swear that the testimony you are about to give is truthful.

	Peter Walsh
	8 Walter Drive
	Stony Point, New York

Mr. Walsh:  “The testimony I am about to give is truthful.”

Chairman Wright:  Can you just kind of give us an overview of what you are looking to accomplish and what relief you are seeking in your application?

Mr. Walsh:  So what I am trying to do is I am trying to put up a garage on the side and a room behind it for the purpose of additional storage and am additional room for extended family.  

I have it marked out…everything marked out on the driveway.  I don’t know if you guys came by, but I can leave it marked up.  I have a Public Hearing notice that I sent out for my next door neighbor on the side which we will be building the garage on.  She was unable to come, but I can read what she said and submit it for record, and I have another one from one of my other neighbors pretty much it says Mary and Jean Klein have no issues with the requested build.  Pretty much I submitted all of the plans, and I think you guys should have everything.

Chairman Wright:  If you have letters, you can forward them off to Ms. Kivlehan.  

Mr. Walsh:  Yes, sir.  Thank you.  

Chairman Wright:  I will open it up to any questions from the Board?

Mr. Lynch:  It’s just primarily the one side of your house to do the primary addition on the garage and extended room.  That is the way I am interpretating it.  The garage is on the one side of the house.  You are not extending on both sides.

Mr. Walsh:  No sir.  Just one side closer to the one neighbor.  Yes sir and we are going to the back so it would pretty much when it is said  the garage would be on the same line as the front of the house and the backroom would be on the same line as the rear of the house.  

Mr. Lynch:  And the pool is an above ground pool?

Mr. Walsh:  Yes, sir.

Chairman Wright:  All that is existing then.

Mr. Walsh:  Yes, all that is existing.

Chairman Wright:  All you are adding is the stuff in the lines here (pointing to the site plan).  

Mr. Walsh:  Everything else – the deck.  Everything else is existing.  The shed in the rear.  All it would be is to the right of the house.  

Chairman Wright:  And it is to the right looking at it from Walter Drive?

Mr. Walsh:  Yes.

Chairman Wright:  So this is a two-story…?

Mr. Walsh:  It is a one-story.

Chairman Wright:  Just the garage.

Mr. Lynch:  The garage is pretty much a car and a half size.  It is a little bit larger, but not a full two-car garage.


Mr. Walsh:  Yes, it is 20 feet that we are requesting and maybe we will be able to get a small car in there, but it would be more for a one car and additional storage and maybe some quads for the kids and stuff like that.  We are not looking more for parking cars in it; we are looking more for the extra storage and maybe one car.  Like one of my work vehicles or something to that extent.  

Chairman Wright:  It will be the same depth as the house that has been extended in the back too; correct.

Mr. Walsh:  Yes, sir.

Chairman Wright:  And will any of that be…will that just be like garage space or any living space?  Is it going to be living space?

Mr. Walsh:  In the rear would be living space.  I believe we submitted the plans prepared by my architect which shows floor plan and the bathroom.

Chairman Wright:  Will there be an exit door on that?

Mr. Walsh:  To go out to the backyard?

Chairman Wright:  Yes.

Mr. Walsh:  No, it would just be a door to come in from the garage into the house.

Chairman Wright:  Any other questions from the Board?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright;  Any questions from the public?  Anybody from the public have any questions?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Mr. MacCartney, do you have any thoughts, concerns?

Mr. MacCartney:  No,  the only question.  I might have missed what you said in the beginning.  You mentioned the neighbor is Klein and did you say something about them supporting it or not objecting to it?

Mr. Walsh:  She is supporting it.  I have the paperwork.  She just couldn’t come today.  She pretty much has no objections to it.  It pretty much says Mary and Jean Klein have no issues with requested build.  And she signed it.

Mr. MacCartney:  Let’s make sure that that letter gets submitted to the Board for its review and inclusion in the record.

Mr. Anginoli:  Mr. Walsh, it pretty much is not conclusive.  Does she have an objection or not?

Mr. Walsh:  No objection.

Mr. Anginoli:  Thank you.  

Mr. Walsh:  Sorry about the confusion, sir.  

Mr. Keegan:  Excuse me. You mentioned extended family…

Mr.  Walsh:  Yes.  We have a large…I have a large family.  I have my wife…

Mr. Keegan:  But, this is definitely family.  You are not going to rent this…

Mr. Walsh:  No, no this is my family.  Actually, I would be moving into the new room with my wife and then switching the kids around a little bit into one of them into our room and no rental or nothing.


Chairman Wright:  There is no other objections, I will take a motion to close the Public Hearing.

***MOTION:  Mr. Anginoli made a motion to close the Public Hearing; seconded by Mr. Keegan.  All in favor; the motion was carried.  

Chairman Wright:  The next two (2) items are…we will do them one at a time.  The next one is an interpretation for the request of Jack Lieberman.

Request of Jack Lieberman – App. #21-11 (Interpretation)

An interpretation of the requirements of Chapter 215, Article 92 Section 2 – Residential mixed use in the BU Zoning District.  Residences shall be permitted by conditional use permit of the Planning Board in the BU district subject to the following conditions:

A. The ground floor of the building must contain a nonresidential use which is a permitted or conditional use permit nonresidential use with the BU Zoning District.
F.A.R. (floor area ratio) = 218 Attachment III – Table of General Use Requirements, Part II – Non-residential Districts BU Districts every use group listed for permitted and for conditional use includes a F.A.R. on the Table of Bulk Requirements Part II, Column 11

for interpretation of F.A.R. per Building Inspector’s letter dated March 8, 2021, at 111 South Liberty Drive, Stony Point, New York.

Section:  20.11          Block:  2          Lot:  29          Zone:  BU

Chairman Wright: Again, Mr. Lieberman we are here just trying to make sure that the application, we understand the application…oh Mr. Sheehan; alright.  

Alright, if you could just identify yourself and your residence.

	William Sheehan
	1 Ryder Court
	Stony Point, New York

Chairman Wright:  And you are representing Mr. Lieberman?

Mr. Sheehan:  Yes, that is correct.

Chairman Wright:  So if you want to just go ahead and give us an overview.

Mr. Sheehan:  This is a proposal that has been before the Planning Board, at workshop meetings…which is a mixed use of commercial on the bottom floor; residential above that.  I guess there was some question as far as if the floor area ratio pertained to this application and also on the second one if the recreation area was part of this.  

If I can just mention – the two (2) letters that were submitted from the Building Department to the applicant; which I am sure you have before you, if I could just give a brief history on the second item it might settle the first item.  The letter from the Building Department dated March 26, 2021, says as far as a recreation area since the use proposed is not currently improved use in any district…that is incorrect.  Chapter 215, Section 92.2 which is the rules and regulations for mixed use.  The first sentence says residence shall be permitted by conditional use permit of the Planning Board in the B.U. District.  

Chairman Wright:  What we are just looking to check the application…

Mr. Sheehan:  What I am trying to get to is that our position is that to both interpretation and the appeal does not apply here because this applicant, on the accessory use of the residence, should be complying with Section 92.2 of the Zoning Code which gives the rules and regulations for the residence above commercial use.  In that, there is no F.A.R. required and also that the recreation doesn’t spell out that it has to be 10 feet from the building and so forth, but the Building Department’s relying on is recreation definition for senior citizen housing; which this is not.  Actually this zone doesn’t….senior citizen is in an S.R. District; this is in a B.U. District.  So our opinion is that both of these; interpretation and appeal could be granted for the applicant.  

Chairman Wright:  Okay, any questions from the Board?  Again, I don’t want to get into the “nitty-gritty” of the actual elements…it’s just that we want to make sure that the application is complete and accept it.

Mr. MacCartney:  I’ve got one procedural snafu that I see.  I see that there is two (2) applications; there is an application #21-11 and #21-12.  Application #21-12, I don’t have any problem with at all because there’s an actual determination letter; that’s the one that relates to the recreation issue I think.  Am I right on that?

Mr. Sheehan:  I think that one is the more important one because I think that would settle the first one if that’s…

Mr. MacCartney:  That one is based on the determination made by the Building Department in the March 26, 2021, letter.  That’s a determination.  There is an appeal that’s proper from that; no problem…that’s the 21-12, but when I went back to the 21-11 and I am looking at the letters, that application is the one that is confined to the F.A.R. issue and in the March 26, 2021, letter in regard to the F.A.R. issue it doesn’t actually make a determination it just goes…it refers the reader back to the March 8, 2021, letter and in the March 8, 2021, letter I am looking for…I’m not sure if I see an actual determination about whether it applies or not.  I think it’s very easily solved to get it properly before the Board, but you know me for many years of being here that I am always concerned about Board’s jurisdiction.  So usually what we have is an actual determination one way or the other from which the applicant then takes an appeal and then that interpretation is now up for the Board.  It’s an appeal and it’s an interpretation saying did he apply it right or did he not apply it right.  

I’m not sure that there’s been an actual written determination on the F.A.R. issue so I am just a little concerned about that procedurally.  

Mr. Hager:  Well the answer is it has not been.

Mr. MacCartney:  Okay, so I am reading it correctly.

Mr. Hager:  Yes.  Basically I don’t feel that the Code is definitive enough for me to make that determination.  So there’s clearly floor area ratio required under certain circumstances, but the area of the Code determines the special permitted use doesn’t specifically exempt the applicant from the floor area ratio.  
But, I don’t think it was definitive enough for me to bother the strict interpretation one way or the other.  The Board needs to interpret this.

Mr. MacCartney:  Quickly, before I came up here and I appreciate that I understand where you are coming from with the letter.  What I would like to do…I did a quick little research before I got up here to just check on the caselaw to see.  The very first case that came up is the case from Chestnut Ridge that got to this issue which said look you got to have a determination.  That is (a) determination one way or the other for the Board to have its appellate jurisdiction invoked.  So maybe what we do is let me…what I would like to do, and my advice would be don’t accept the 21-11 quite yet.  Let my office work with John and get the appeal paper that I think we need so there is not a question about jurisdiction.  Whatever the Board does with it we don’t want anybody arguing we didn’t have the authority to have done that.  We want to make sure that we button-up the jurisdiction and get the issue before the Board properly so that the Board can then decide the issue.  

Mr. Sheehan:  If I may make a statement, that is fine.  The only issue we would have is that a new application would have to be submitted and so forth for a determination from the Building Department if that could be done prior…I would rather see the application accepted so we could have the Public Hearing the same night as the Public Hearing for the recreation.  But, again I think if the applicant was successful on the recreation end I think that would settle the F.A.R. because both the recreation, if it is determined for the applicant that we should only be using 92.2 then obviously that would regulate the rules and regulations for the mixed use.  Or not the mixed use, the residential part of the mixed use and obviously it doesn’t mention F.A.R. and there is a reason why it doesn’t mention F.A.R. the same reason why non-comply and non-conforming Section 94 doesn’t require F.A.R. because it was left out on purpose.  

So if you follow what I am saying if it was deemed that we should be following 92.2, I think the F.A.R. goes away.

Mr. MacCartney:  I have not remotely rolled up my sleeves on this sensitive issue.  I hear what you are saying, but I’m semi following you.

Mr. Sheehan:  But, then again maybe we can accept the application subject to getting the determination so we could have the Public Hearing the same night.

Mr. MacCartney:  My only concern is procedurally do we get there in time because you are going to have to amend the application and…it’s simple.  It’s just going to be.  It’s the same application only we are appealing from the determination dated such and such and attaches a copy.  So it’s simply done.  Just a matter of getting the written determination in time to have the Public Hearing.  So I suppose what you could do…you can do one of a couple of things.  You could sort of separate them, put the other one on for sure; put on application #21-12 for sure next month.  I don’t see any problem with that one at all and I think Bill was saying that one way or the other he thinks that is going to affect the outcome of the other one and then take the other one as it goes.  I don’t know how we do that in advance if we don’t have the determination, we don’t have the amended application, how do you accept the application and then put it on for a hearing.

Chairman Wright:  Do we generally know here, just from the discussion the overall thrust of this case on that one and is it just a matter if we…we are not sure what the Building Inspector is going to object to is basically what we are saying at this point.  

Mr. MacCartney:  We don’t know what the specific determination is.  I hear what John said, but I think what we need is something in writing and again we can make sure that gets done in short order just to invoke it.  I hate to put procedure over substance, but I think the procedure is very important here when it comes to jurisdiction.  

Chairman Wright:  I’m following you.  I’m just wondering…I’m assuming from what you are saying it’s  more than just the formality of putting the objection together and put some substance in there we want to be able to review as part of accepting the application.

In that case, it could draw out more items that would make this more straightforward than we are probably thinking at this point.  

Mr. MacCartney:  I don’t know.

Mr. Sheehan:  If the Building Department determines that it’s not required, then that would end it all.

Mr. MacCartney:  I guess that’s the end of it.  The Building Department is going to determine that it is required, or it’s not required and then that determination is going to get appealed and the Building Inspector; if the Building Department says it is not required, well then it is not required.  Unless some other member of the public who is aggrieved by it then we’ve had that before the Board as well as you know.  Maybe unlikely, but…

Chairman Wright:  It’s just a matter of the acceptance.  If we accept it, then we can go ahead and schedule the Public Hearing.  So with the acceptance what we are trying to do is determine is there enough there for us to accept it or are we saying not yet.  

I’m just wondering are their assumptions that we can make, but it doesn’t sound like that.

Mr. MacCartney:  It’s hard.  You know me.  I don’t want to stand in the way or create a delay for an applicant when they are before the Board, and they have two things riding together with them.  Nobody likes to do that.  I’m just having a problem with how do we get there with when we don’t have the determination and you’d be voting to put it for a Public Hearing, and you don’t even know what the appeal is or if the appeal is necessary.  So it’s almost like we’ve got to do…it’s almost like we have to do the two in lock step.  One then the other or one and then the other one joins.  Like let’s get the first one on so you can come to the next meeting.  Unless the preference is wait on both until we get the determination, come back at the July meeting, and then schedule it for double Public Hearing at the next available meeting for both of them.  That’s a possibility if the applicant prefers that.

Mr. Sheehan:  No, the applicant would rather see the Public Hearing set for the recreation part of it to cite the appeal and then wait for the determination from the Building Department if there is going to be.  Then we would appeal that if there is a determination…a determination from the applicant we would appeal that.  If it is determined that, it’s not required then everybody is happy.  

Mr. MacCartney:  I think that is the way to go.  

Chairman Wright:  It sounds like what we are saying is we will go ahead and accept application #21-12 and then we will defer application #21-11 for now until we have a determination from the Building Department.  Does that sound right?

Mr. MacCartney:  That sounds right.

Mr. Sheehan:  I think what the attorney’s suggestion is that when you make the determination you kind of have to link it to something and that is what you are appealing.  

Chairman Wright:  I am with you.  I think it’s a good idea.  

Mr. Lynch:  So we are going to hold off on 21-11.

Chairman Wright:  So does anybody have any questions for Mr. Sheehan we will open up.  Any questions for Mr. Sheehan?  

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  So then on that, what we will do is accept application #21-12 and we will wait for the finding on application #21-11.  

Mr. Lynch:  Are we going to get that prior to the next meeting?

Mr. MacCartney:  I would imagine so.  I would hope so that way…that would be the plan.

Mr. Lynch:  I am trying to get in my head too  so this way I know where to look.  

Chairman Wright:  With that, I will move that we accept application #21-12 for our next meeting for the Public Hearing.

***MOTION:  Chairman Wright made a motion to place Application #21-12 on the July 15, 2021, agenda for a Public Hearing; seconded by Mr. Lynch.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  Then application #21-11 will wait until we have a determination and then we will address it at the next meeting.

***MOTION:  Chairman Wright made a motion to defer Application #21-11 until a determination is made on Application #21-12; seconded by Mr. Strieter.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  Is there any other business that needs to be bought up?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright;  With that I will take a motion to adjourn the meeting.

***MOTION:  Mr. Anginoli made a motion to adjourn the meeting of June 17, 2021; seconded by Mr. Strieter.  All in favor; the motion was carried.
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